
 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 
Kings County Board of Education 

Organizational Meeting 
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 

Kings County Office of Education, 1144 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 
4:00 p.m. 

 
The Kings County School Board continues to offer hybrid meetings, allowing for attendance in person and 

virtually to accommodate those members of the public who wish to attend remotely. The Trustees may attend in 
person or remotely and will adhere to the requirements of the Brown Act in either case. 

Members of the public may join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone 
by clicking on the Zoom link below: 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/82123324460?pwd%3DdVl4cy9ydG1ERElBZlFaOUVoVzllZ
z09&sa=D&source=calendar&usg=AOvVaw0QkjKUyavbLBnailjIZ1TB 

1. Call to Order ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 

2. Pledge of Allegiance ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard. The 
Board may limit comment to no more than 3 minutes and the total time for public input on an agenda item 
shall not exceed 20 minutes. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING: Kings County Board of Education Proposed Changes to Trustee Areas in Accordance 

with Education Code §1002 and the 2020 Census Data ~ Todd Barlow 

4. Review of Kings County Board of Education Proposed Changes to Trustee Areas in Accordance with 
Education Code §1002 and the 2020 Census Data ~ Todd Barlow 
 

ACTION: 
 
5. Conduct Annual Organizational Meeting of the Kings County Board of Education ~ Todd Barlow 

 Elect President and Vice President 

 Establish Date/Time of Meetings 

 Appoint Representative to Serve On Subcommittee: Kings County School Boards Association 

RECESS 

6. Consider Approval of Minutes of November 10, 2021, Regular Meeting ~ Board President (Pgs. 1-3) 

7. Consider Approval of Resolution A121521 California State Preschool Program Contract ~ Rebecca Villa 
(Pgs. 4-5) 

8. Consider Acceptance of Donation from CalViva ~ Rebecca Villa (Pgs. 6-8) 

9. Consider Acceptance of Donation from Leprino Foods ~ Rebecca Villa (Pgs. 9-11) 

10. Consider Acceptance of Donation from Pleasant Valley State Prison ~ Rebecca Villa (Pgs. 12-14) 

11. Consider Approval of Educator Effectiveness Block Grant Plan ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 15-19) 

12. Consider Approval of Board Bylaw #9250 Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits (4th reading) ~ 
Todd Barlow (Pgs. 20-21) 

13. Consider Approval of Collective Bargaining Agreement for 2021-22 Fiscal Year ~ Ivo Denham (Pgs. 22-25) 

14. Consider Approval of 2021-22 First Interim Report ~ Ivo Denham & Jamie Dial (Pgs. 26-193) 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/82123324460?pwd%3DdVl4cy9ydG1ERElBZlFaOUVoVzllZz09&sa=D&source=calendar&usg=AOvVaw0QkjKUyavbLBnailjIZ1TB
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/82123324460?pwd%3DdVl4cy9ydG1ERElBZlFaOUVoVzllZz09&sa=D&source=calendar&usg=AOvVaw0QkjKUyavbLBnailjIZ1TB


 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
1. Review Disposal of Fixed Assets ~ Ivo Denham (Pgs. 194-196) 

2. Superintendent’s Report ~ Todd Barlow 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 
 

Coming Events 
 

Christmas Holiday ~ KCOE Closed ~ December 23-31, 2021 

 

  



 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 
Kings County Committee on School District Organization 

Organizational Meeting 
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 

Kings County Office of Education 
1144 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 

4:30 p.m. or immediately following meeting of 
Kings County Board of Education 

 

 

1. Call to Order ~ Board President 

2. Conduct Annual Organizational Meeting of the Kings County Board of Education ~ Todd Barlow 

 Elect President and Vice President 

 Establish Date/Time of Meetings 

3. Review of Kings County Board of Education Proposed Changes to Trustee Areas in Accordance with 
Education Code §1002 and the 2020 Census Data ~ Todd Barlow 

 
 



1



2



3



BOARD ACTION ITEM 
 

 
TOPIC: APPOVAL OF RESOLUTION A121521. RESOLUTION 

REGARDING CALIFORNIA STATE PRESCHOOL 
PROGRAM CONTRACT APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZED 
SIGNATURE. 

  
DATE OF MEETING: December 15, 2021 
 
ISSUE: California Department of Education- California State 

Preschool Program requires Board Approval to enter into 
the Continued Funding Application and contract. Board 
approval is also required to complete the application and 
contract utilizing electric signatures. 

 
 
BACKGROUND: Each fall the Kings County Office of Education’s California 

State Preschool Program completes the Continued Funding 
Application to continue providing California State Preschool 
services.  New to the 2022-2023 Continued Funding 
Application is the requirement of a Board resolution 
authorizing entering into the Continued Funding Application 
and contract, and the use of electronic signatures to 
complete said application and contract.  

                                                     
RESOURCE: Rebecca Villa, Director ECE Programs 
 589-7075 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends the Board approve 

resolution A121521 authorizing entering into the Continued 
Funding Application and contract, and the use of electronic 
signatures to complete said application and contract 

 

4



California State Preschool Program 
Continued Funding Application 

Authorized Signature 

Kings County Office of Education 

Resolution A121521 

RESOLUTION REGARDING CALIFORNIA STATE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM 

CONTRACT APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

 

Statement of Approval 

 

WHEREAS, I am authorized by the California State Preschool Program’s governing authority 

to execute the Continued Funding Application, signifying their intent to automatically renew 

the current contract for FY 2022–23, under new terms and conditions to be established by the 

California Department of Education, unless rejected in writing prior to the effective date of the 

new CSPP contract on July 1, 2022.  

WHEREAS, I have supervisory authority over the California State Preschool Program, and I 

have actual, personal knowledge of the information provided in the Continued Funding 

Application and certify that it is true and correct in all material respects.  

 WHEREAS, I am familiar with and will ensure that the California State Preschool Program 

complies with all applicable program statutes and regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, This resolution be adopted in order to certify the 

approval of the Kings County Office of Education’s Governing Board to enter into a contract 

with the California Department of Education’s-California State Preschool Program, vendor 

number 1016 for the purpose of providing child care and development services and to 

authorize the designated personnel to electronically sign contract documents for Fiscal Year 

2022-2023.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board on December 15, 2021 by the following 

vote: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) SS 

COUNTY OF KINGS) 

 

I, Todd Barlow, Clerk/Secretary of the Kings County Office of Education’s Governing Board, 

do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full and correct copy of a resolution duly passed and 

adopted by said Board at a regularly called and conducted meeting held on said date:  

December 15, 2021. 

 

 

__________________________________________   

Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board  Date 

5



BOARD ACTION ITEM

TOPIC: Donation Acceptance

DATE OF MEETING: December 15, 2021

ISSUE: Acceptance of Donation from CalViva.

BACKGROUND: At the Family Resource Centers, staff strive to give all 
children in our community the opportunity to participate in 
educational workshops and activities that promote early 
literacy and school readiness; we also encourage our 
children to not only succeed but to thrive. The Family 
Resource Centers coordinate three Literacy Festivals. The 
Fall, Winter, and the Spring Festivals. 

CalViva supports our efforts by donating $2,000 to 
purchase Winter and Spring decorations for both centers; 
materials for children to create a winter and spring craft 
activity; buy goody bags for pictures with Santa; and eggs 
with goodies for the Spring Festival. We are expecting 160 
families to participate in each festival. This donation is 
greatly appreciated and will benefit the children served at 
the Hanford and Lemoore Family Resource Centers.

RESOURCE: Rebecca Villa, Director ECE Programs
(559) 589-7075

RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends the Board accept the 
$2,000 donation from CalViva.

6



7



8



BOARD ACTION ITEM

TOPIC: Donation Acceptance

DATE OF MEETING: December 15, 2021

ISSUE: Acceptance of Donation from Leprino Foods.

BACKGROUND: The Hanford and Lemoore Family Resource Center staff 
offer services to all Kings County Residents with children 
ages 0-5.  Some of the services provided at The Kings 
County Office of Education’s- Family Resource Centers 
are developmentally appropriate classes for children, 
community resources such a Medi-Cal application 
assistance, and parent support groups with a licensed 
mental health technician, all free of charge, regardless of 
income. Unfortunately, funding support has decreased 
over the last three years while program costs continue to 
grow.  Leprino Foods has provided the Family Resource 
Centers with a generous and needed $24,300 donation to 
purchase materials.  Additionally, Leprino Foods 
employees will be volunteering at both Family Resource 
Center sites to assist Kings County Families.

RESOURCE: Rebecca Villa, Director ECE Programs
(559) 589-7075

RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends the Board accept the 
$24,300 donation from Leprino Foods.

9



10



11



BOARD ACTION ITEM

TOPIC: Donation Acceptance

DATE OF MEETING: December 15, 2021

ISSUE: Acceptance of Donation from Pleasant Valley State 
Prision.

BACKGROUND: The Pleasant Valley State Prision Employee Action 
Committee of Coalinga is dedicated to “making a positive 
difference in the workplace and the local community.  The 
Employee Action Committee is focused on the needs of 
employees, their families, and our local community. 

RESOURCE: Rebecca Villa, Director ECE Programs
(559) 589-7075

RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends the Board accept the 
$754. donation from Pleasant Valley State Prision 
Employee Action Committee.

12



13



14



 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

 

DATE:     December 15, 2021 

 

 

TOPIC: Approval of the Kings County Office of 

Education’s Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 

Plan 

 

ISSUE: One-time funding provided to county offices of 

education, school districts, charter schools, and state 

special schools to provide professional learning for 

teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals, and 

classified staff in order to promote educator equity, 

quality, and effectiveness. 

 

BACKGROUND: Funds may be used to support professional learning 

for certificated teachers, administrators, 

paraprofessional educators and certification staff 

with a focus on any of the ten areas included 

in EC 41480(b). Funds are subject to annual audit. 

 

RESOURCE: Joy Santos  

 Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 

  joy.santos@kingscoe.org  

 559-589-7068 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend the Kings County Board of Education 

approves the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 

Plan. 

15

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Kings County Office of Education Page 1 of 4

 
 

Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 
 

 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Kings County Office of Education            Joy Santos, Assistant Superintendent of 

Educational Services           
Jamie Dial, Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services 

joy.santos@kingscoe.org, (559)589-7068           
jamie.dial@kingscoe.org, (559)589-7091 

 
Total amount of funds received by the LEA: Date of Public Meeting prior to adoption: Date of adoption at public meeting: 
$750,543.00 November 10, 2021 December 15, 2021 

 
 
EC 41480  
(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds received pursuant to this subdivision from 
the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and state special schools shall 
coordinate the use of any federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (Public Law 114–95) to support 
teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision. 
 
(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds apportioned pursuant to this section to provide 
professional learning for teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils, with a focus 
on any of the following areas: 
 

(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction, including, but not 
limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on 
retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not 
limited to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills, 
improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one’s self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators to engage in a 
meaningful classroom teaching experience. 

 

16

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=41480.&lawCode=EDC


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Kings County Office of Education Page 2 of 4

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

In accordance with Title II funding: Supporting a 
Diverse Educator Workforce Across the 
Career Continuum - SEAs and LEAs may use 
Title II, Part A funds to improve the recruitment, 
placement, support, and retention of culturally 
competent and responsive educators, 
especially educators from underrepresented 
minority groups, to meet the needs of diverse 
student populations. 
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/essat
itleiipartaguidance.pdf 

$37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 
 
 

(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas, 
including English language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer 
science. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Standards-aligned instructional training to 
support SELPA, Special Education and 
Juvenile court school students. 

$37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 
 
 

(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to mental health 
services, and other approaches that improve pupil well-being. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Attend, design, plan, and/or implement 
professional development in the following 
areas: social-emotional learning, trauma-
informed practices, suicide prevention, access 
to mental health  services, and other 
approaches that improve pupil well-being. 

$37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 187,635.75 

17

https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/essatitleiipartaguidance.pdf
https://www2.ed.gov/policy/elsec/leg/essa/essatitleiipartaguidance.pdf


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Kings County Office of Education Page 3 of 4

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 
 
 

(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best practices for early 
identification, and development of individualized education programs for individuals with exceptional needs. 

 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Training to improve inclusive practices to 
support SELPA, Special Education and 
Juvenile court school students. 

$37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 $37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 
 
 

Summary of Expenditures 
 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 

Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted  
2025-26 

Total Budgeted 
per Activity 

Subtotal Section (1) 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal Section (2) 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal Section (3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (4) 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal Section (5) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (6) 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 37,527.15 187,635.75 

Subtotal Section (7) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (10) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Totals by year 150,108.60 150,108.60 150,108.60 150,108.60 150,108.60 750,543.00 

 
18



Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Kings County Office of Education Page 4 of 4

Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 
750,543.00 

 
Note: 
Per EC 41480 (d)(2): On or before September 30, 2026, the LEA must report detailed expenditure information to the California Department of 
Education, including, but not limited to: 

• specific purchases made; 
• the number of the following educators who received professional development: 

o Teachers; 
o Administrators; 
o Paraprofessional educators; 
o Classified staff.

19



Kings County Board of Education 
Board Bylaw 
 
BB 9250 
Board Bylaws 
 

Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits 
 
Remuneration 

 

Each member of the Governing Board may receive the maximum monthly 
compensation as provided for in law for attendance at scheduled board meetings.  In no 
case will total monthly compensation exceed the amount allowed in Education Code 
1090.  To receive compensation, a member shall attend a regularly scheduled Board 
meeting or fulfill a Board pre-approved assignment to attend a county office related 
function.  
 
Reimbursement of Expenses 
 
Board members shall be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred for the actual number 
of miles driven and for per diem expenses while on necessary official business of the 
County Board of Education (Education Code 1096).  Official business is defined as 
attending a meeting or event as a member of the Kings County Board of Education 
where the trustee’s presence is necessary to conduct the business of the meeting or 
event. 
 
Meetings or events in which a trustee’s presence is not necessary to conduct business 
shall not be reimbursable.  Meetings or events in which a trustee's candidacy for public 
office is promoted shall not be reimbursable. 
 
Reimbursement for travel expenses incurred by attending regular and special meetings 
of the Kings County Board of Education shall be automatically approved by the Board.  
 
Trustees shall share information regarding potentially reimbursable activities with the 
public at the next regular meeting of the County Board of Education.  No request for 
reimbursement will be honored if made after adjournment of the next regular meeting of 
the County Board of Education. 
 
Payment to the County Board member shall be made periodically using the same 
process as that specified for county office personnel and at the same rate of 
reimbursement. 
 
Health and Welfare Benefits 
 
Board members may participate in the health and welfare benefits program provided for 
county office employees. 
 

20



Health and welfare benefits for Board members shall be no greater than that received 
by county office's non-safety employees with the most generous schedule of benefits.  
(Government Code 53208.5)  
 
Other Benefits  
 
Board members will receive the same amount of life insurance coverage as the county 
office’s unrepresented employees. 
 
 
Legal References: 

EDUCATION CODE 

1090 Compensation for members and mileage allowance  
1096 Reimbursement for board member conference travel  
33050-33053  General waiver authority   
33362-33363  Reimbursement of expenses (Department of Education and CSBA 
workshops) 
44038 Cash deposits for transportation purchased on credit 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

20322 Elective officers; election to become member   
53200-53209 Group insurance 

COURT DECISIONS 

Thorning v. Hollister School District, (1992) 11 Cal.App.4th 1598   
Board of Education of the Palo Alto Unified School District v. Superior Court of Santa 
Clara County, (1979) 93 Cal.App.3d 578   
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS   
83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 124 (2000)   
 
 
Adopted by Board: October 2, 1985  

Reviewed by Board: August 2, 1989  

Reviewed by Board: October 5, 1994  

Revised by Board: July 2, 1997  

Revised by Board: January 5, 2000  

Revised by Board: April 13, 2005  

Revised by Board: June 4, 2008  

Revised by Board: September 6, 2018  

 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196


	MinutesOf111021
	A121521CAStatePreSchoolProgramContract
	Donation-CalViva
	Donation-Leprino
	Donation-PleasantValleyStatePrison
	EducatorEffectivenessBlockGrantPlan
	2021 Educator Effectiveness Block Grant EEBG Plan - Final 12.15.21 (1).pdf
	Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021


	BB9250 Remuneration, Reimbursement, And Other Benefits
	DisclosureOfCollectiveBargainingAgreements2021-22
	2021-22 First Interim Report
	DisposalOfFixedAssets



